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ADDENDUM 1 

Issued: September 23, 2008 
 

This Addendum incorporates certain general comments, 
general corrections to the RFP, and answers to questions posed 
during the optional pre-proposal conference held on September 
19, 2008. 
 
GENERAL 
 

Verbal responses to questions at the optional Pre-Proposal 
Conference on September 19, 2008 are unofficial and are not 
binding. Only these written responses may be relied upon by 
offerors. 

 
A word version of the RFP was sent to all attendees for 

redlined demurals specified in section 6.1 of the RFP. 
 

Participants at the Optional Pre-proposal Conference were 
required to register their attendance and to provide their 
business cards and fax numbers. A list of all attendees at the 
conference is enclosed for informational purposes.   

 
Please strike the reference to Bill Gregory in section 7.9 

and replace with Dan Hinderliter. 
 
General Changes to Released RFP: 
 
1. In regards to SWaM and the 40% goal, is that the target for this RFP? 
The Governor’s statewide aspiration goal for spending is 40% of purchases to be made 
from SWaM vendors.  The goal for this RFP is to utilize the grading criteria in section 
6.7 which allots 20% of the total evaluation criteria to utilization of “Small”businesses. 
 
2. Is there a stated goal in this RFP for SWaM? 



The goal of DHRM is to increase SWaM utlization where possible.  This is why 20% of 
the evaluation criteria is designated to Small Business utilization. 
 
3. In section 3.2 referencing picking up eligibility files, will these be picked up 

electronically or physically? 
Electronically, via FTP. 
 
4. In section 7.21.2, what is the benefit of eVA?  Will claims be processed through this 

system? 
eVA is the electronic procurment system utilized by the Commonwealth.  It is a 
requirement for vendors under this solicitation to register as specified in section 7.21.  
Vendors registered in eVA receive notification when the Commonwealth is begins 
procurement for specified  commodities. 
 
5. Regarding eVA, the vender would not need to register more than once when bidding 

on more than one RFP?  Could just the parent company register? 
One registration per company is all that is required.   
 
6. If we have had recent Business Association Agreements (BAA) would we be 

excluded from this contract requirement? 
A new BAA would be required under this contract. 
 
7. Can TLC census be provided?  NO 
 
 
8. What out of network fee schedule (e.g., 90th percentile of Ingenix) was used to pay 

non-network dental providers?  This information is proprietary; use your own 
standard 
In the Instructions for Schedule 2-1, what is the definition of "eligible charges 
incurred?"  

b) Does this definition include or exclude the impact of the benefit plan (e.g. 
deductible, coinsurance, exclusion and limitations)? Exclude 

c) Is this value based on provider billed charges or are the incumbent carrier's 
network discounts and out-of-network fee schedule reductions reflected in this 
value?   Provider billed. 

d) What lag period was used to complete calendar year 2007 paid charges?   
Claims paid through April 2008 

e) Confirm that 2006 and 2008 eligible incurred charges have been excluded 
from 2007 eligible incurred charges. Confirmed 

 
 
 
9. Are claims available by ADA code as well as by paid and incurred date?   NO   If yes, 

please provide. 
-Are month-by-month claims and membership data available for the most 
recent 24 months?  If yes,     please provide.  NO 



-Appendix 8.c. - "This monthly billing and reconciliation should be handled 
by the plans like it is done with groups, which are contracted with directly".   -
-Does this mean the dental vendor will direct bill TLC groups for the dental 
portion while others (health, RX, MISA) handle their own respective 
portions?   TLC groups are billed by the medical/surgical vendor.  Their 
monthly premium incorporates all components of their coverage, including 
Rx, MISA and dental.  The dental vendor will not have any billing 
responsibility for TLC groups. 
-Appendix 2:  Can TLC census be provided? NO 
-Appendix 2:  Can TLC enrollment demographics be provided similar to the 
COVA August 2008 (Monthly Published Enrollment Data) data provided? 
NO 
-Schedule 2-1:Please describe the method used to Incur Eligible Charges 
Provider billed charges. Claims charges shown are incurred through April 
2008. 
 
 

10. Is it the intent of the RFP that this carved out dental would replace all dental across 
the board for any fully insured offering?   It is not the intent of this RFP to replace 
dental coverage provided under fully insured programs 

 
 
11. The existing carrier promotes its Delta Premier Indemnity network over its Delta PPO 

network.  How are claims currently being paid if a COVA member receives treatment 
from a Delta PPO dentist who is also a Delta Premier dentist?  Which fee schedule is 
applied?   Benefits are paid the same regardless of which network is accessed.  We 
are looking for your proposal to address how you will structure payment under your 
network arrangements. 

 
 
12. The following PPEA language is referenced in the COVa Dental RFP: 
  
 The department is currently reviewing PPEA proposals to provide comprehensive care 

management services. This process could result in carving out some or all care and condition 
management services such as wellness, disease, and case management, patient advocacy, 
and customer service under a third party vendor. (See OHB08-2 under Vendor RFP at 
http://www.dhrm.virginia.gov/customers/vendors.html). Please state your position on carving 
out such services. 

  
Is this germane to the Dental RFP or just the Medical, Prescription and MISA RFPs? 

While it is not anticipated that the comprehensive care management provisions of the PPEA will 
be applicable to the dental program, it has been included in this RFP to elicit thoughtful response 
from dental vendors and establish a platform for integration of all aspects of the health program. 

 
 

13. Enrollment Demographics spreadsheet (Monthly Published Enrollment Data): 
a) Does this table include both COVA and TLC enrolled?  No – state employee 

plan only. If yes, can this enrollment be broken out?      The Enrollment 
Demographics Spreadsheet does not include TLC demographics. 



b) Medicare enrollees are shown in this spreadsheet.  However, Section 1.3 of 
the RFP indicates that only non-Medicare eligible retirees are covered under 
the COVA dental plan.  Confirm that 28,626 Medicare contracts are not 
included in the covered population.    Confirmed 

c) What is a Linked Child or Spouse?   A linked child or spouse is the non-
Medicare eligible child or spouse of a Medicare-eligible retiree.  These 
dependents are covered under the COVA program for active employees. 

 
 
14. Are both the standard dental benefits claims and the expanded dental benefits claims 

provided here?  Yes   Will you provide them separately with enrollment for each? 
Separate claims amounts will not be provided. Enrollment is provided in the 
demographic file. 

 
 
 
 



Vendors in Attendance of the Mandatory 
Pre-Proposal Conference 

Held Friday, September 19, 2008 
 
 

Anthem 
Chesapeake Financial Services 

CIGNA HealthCare 
Human Market Point 
Omega Adminitrators 

United Healthcare 
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